APPROVED/BOARD OF FINANCE MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
TUESDAY, JULY 19, 2011

A regular meeting of the Board of Finance was held on Tuesday, July 19, 2011 in the large conference
room in Town Hall at 6:00 p.m.

Members Present:  Peter Gomez, Chairman (arrived at 6:55 p.m.) ; Jill Bornstein, Vice Chairman (left
at 8:00 p.m.); Marty Heiser; David Ulmer; and Margaret Price Sims (left at 7 p.m.)

Town Officials: Rudy Marconi, First Selectman; Kevin Redmond, Controller; Paul Hendrickson,
BOE Business Manager; Barbara Hartman, Mamanasco Lake Improvement Fund

AGENDA

1) Executive Session — Schlumberger

Annro nf AMNMin ) A 1

3) Discussion of MLIF (Mamanasco Lake Improvement Huvidster Plan
4) Tax Collector’'s Report
a) June 2011 Report
5) Treasurer’s Report
6) BOE YTD Financial Review — Paul Hendrickson
7) Controller's Report
a) June 2011 Preliminary Financial Review
8) General
a) Old Business
b) New Business
c) Communications & Correspondence
8. Adjournment

Ms. Bornstein called the meeting to order at 6:00.p

MAMANASCO LAKE IMPROVEMENT FUND MASTER PLAN

Ms. Hartman presented the BOF with the followingdhaut:

MAMANASCO LAKE IMPROVEMENT FUND
PROPOSED CAPITAL PROJECTS

Storm Water Drainage Projects*

7 projects to be done in 2011 (based on 2010 plans) S  50,000.00
3 projects from 2005 list (based on 1997 plans) $  14,500.00
Third lane stream restoration (final plans to be drawn) S 65,000.00

SUB-TOTAL S 129,500.00

Board of Finance Minutes 7/19/11 - Approved September 20, 2011 Page 1 of 5



Replace Spillway* $ 100,000.00

Wish List With Unlimited Resources*

Sewer line on Mamanasco Road $1,000,000.00
Dredge entire lake (96 acres) $3-5,000,000.
Current Balance in Town Account S 95,595.00

*All figures are estimates based on similar projects and/or CT DOT cost estimates.

The proposed projects are aimed at slowing dowg€ding the water flow which carries silt/sediment
into the lake.

Ms. Sims asked who owns the lake, and Ms. Hartragpanded that nobody knows. The land around the
lake is owned by individuals, the Town, and the&ta Ms. Hartman explained that the MLIF requests
suggested contributions from homeowners in the'sakatershed, which add up to $20k annually. There
is also a beach association, which is open to ahybehich does contribute to the MLIF. Out of $25
families living in the lake’s watershed, about @htribute to the MLIF.

Ms. Bornstein said the BOF wants to find out winat MLIF's long-term plan is. Ms. Sims added that
the $35k annual allotment does not seem to adthedsig issue, and wondered whether it would be
better to address the entire issue up front ratiear apply yearly band aids.

Ms. Hartman indicated that one more year of $3%lukhdo it. She said there was a problem with the
Town Engineer who had the plans since last fall, the project’s bids just went out last week. Ms.
Hartman said there was nothing the MLIF could dbil time Town Engineer acted. Mr. Marconi said he
didn’t think it was entirely fair to throw the TowEngineer under the bus like that. Ms. Hartmad Hzat
the MLIF wants the $129k from the Town of whiclaiteady has $95k.

Mr. Heiser asked how all the weeds in the lake @t removed, and Ms. Hartman said they currently
use approved chemicals and they could put caipeiake which would eat all the good weeds and the
bad weeds, but they grow to 3’ long and scare schdliren.

Ms. Bornstein asked if it would be better to wait &ll the money to be in place before initiatimy aew
work, and Ms. Hartman said that the Town has beamderful awarding the MLIF money each year.
She noted, however, that the Town had $22k thanbabeen spent in prior years, and the $22k w&ts ju
wiped out when the capital account was closed out.

Mr. Ulmer observed that the first three items om tland out, totaling $129,500.00 seem to be the iat
present and asked, once they are finished, hogvbefore the MLIF comes back for more money. Ms.
Hartman responded that it depended on mother ndtutehopefully, years and years. She stated that
Peter Hill, Highway Department Director, has beemderful about yearly maintenance.

TAX COLLECTOR’'S REPORT

Mr. Heiser asked about the two bounced checksweddiy the tax collector last month. Ms. Berendsen
Hill stated that one check bounced twice (due lbark error) and was made good. The other check was
never made good as the money was never there.

Board of Finance Minutes 7/19/11 - Approved September 20, 2011 Page 2 of 5



Ms. Berendsen- Hill reported that, as of July 112Gax collections were $134k, or 47£®f a percent,

under budget for current taxes.

Tax Collector's Report

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011 P
(in millions) Budget Q1 Q2 Q3 April | May | June Q4 YTD % Clictd | as
Current Taxes $109.7 | $331 | $284 | $236| $21.0| 28| $ 03| $ 24.1|109.30% | 99.59% | 1
Supplemental MV 0.6 0.0 0.2 0.4 00| 0.0 0.0 0.0 | 0.60% 95.82% | 1
Prior Year Collections 0.6 0.2 0.3 0.2 00| 012 0.1 0.2 | 0.90% | 153.51% 1
Interest & Lien Fees 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.1 00| 01 0.1 0.1 | 0.40% | 124.48% 1
As of June 30, 2011 $111.3 | $334 | $29.1| $243| $21.1| 05| $ 05| $ 245 |111.20% | 99.92% | 1

Ms. Berendsen-Hill explained that she was feelifdtle bit better (than she felt last month) abdlg
rate of tax collections, saying that some of th@nay not collected last month was collected thisitmo
and, to date, she has collected $155k of the pdar’s taxes. She also thought that real estdés svere
looking up, citing the sale of thirty propertiesatiing $26MM in July, for an average of $867k pales

One property sold for over $2MM, eleven properge&d for over $1MM.

that some of the foreclosed properties were begqta sell.

TREASURER'S REPORT

HSBC $ 201,084.00 | 0.35
MBIA $ 5.13 | 0.15
Rdfld Bank (MuniMMA $ 256,181.30 | 0.23
Rdfld Bank CD due 7/29 $ 1,501,165.30 | 0.23
STIF (pooled short term) $ 362,259.66 | 0.23
Union Svg (6 mo CD) $ 2,004,475.16 0.6
Union Svg (MunMMA Sweep) $ 5,024,723.53 | 0.55
Wachovia (MunMMA) $ 4124290.98 | 0.25
$ 13,474,185.06
YTD Interest Earned as of 6/30/2011
HSBC $ 1,084.00
MrlLynch-BOA $ 1,440.65
Ridgefield Bank $ 14,034.93
STIF $ 1,391.35
Union Savings $ 42,421.28
Wachovia $ 1,629.85
$ 62,002.06

BOE YTD FINANCIAL REVIEW

Ms. Berendsen-Hill added

Mr. Hendrickson explained that the predicted BOHd®i under run of $50,380 is comprised of a lot of

little pieces.

Board of Finance Minutes 7/19/11 - Approved September 20, 2011

Page 3 of 5



Mr. Gomez took issue with the fact that the BOE'HRMIA obligation was paid out of 2010/2011 funds.
Mr. Redmond quickly added that the Town paid itSRMIA obligation out of 2011/2012 funds, where it
was budgeted.

Mr. Gomez asked Mr. Hendrickson to clarify paragwagb in the June 24, 2011 Memorandum he

presented to the BOF wherein he projects a $344)854nder run at year end in the “Other” category.

Mr. Gomez wanted it clear that the non-certifiedbsas includes secretaries, para-professionals and
custodians.

Mr. Gomez asked how the $120k in virus related Ipases was funded, and Mr. Hendrickson said it was
funded by under runs in other areas, e.g. soft-wevgrams. He noted that the $120k amounts to015
of the entire budget. Mr. Gomez asked if the vinasl not happened would the projected over run be
$120k more, and Mr. Hendrickson responded “perhap’. Gomez said he was uncomfortable with the
situation and Mr. Hendrickson noted that $50k repnés one hour of school time per year, indicaiting
was a little much if Mr. Gomez wanted him to castelwith that degree of certainty on a $79MM budget
Mr. Gomez said he wanted was to insure that theimax surplus is incurred and not held for place
holders. Mr. Hendrickson said it isn’'t being hetliat the budget was approved for the schools’ hde.
Gomez agreed, noting that the BOE could use tressfecover such situations, but added that it s
mean that every penny (of the approved budgetjdhbs spent.

Mr. Gomez: It's not a blank check to say that gan spend up to the full amount, would you agree?
Mr. Hendrickson: “No.”

Mr. Gomez: | think we have a substantial abyssvbeh our understanding of budgets and the
obligations that we have to the Town taxpayersu Kave got to understand my perspective.

Mr. Hendrickson: “I have sat in your seat in datiént town.”

Mr. Gomez stated that he was not trying to minimiee difficulty of Mr. Hendrickson’s job, but he wis

to see the maximum amount returned to the taxpatettse end of the fiscal year. He reiterated bt
was also concerned about the MIRMA payment bec#éudees not follow the letter of the law. Mr.
Hendrickson noted that the BOE approved the paynart Mr. Gomez stated that fact did not make it
correct. | am advocating for the taxpayers at yerad, based on wholesome municipal budgeting
practices and accounting principles.

Mr. Hendrickson: “There was nothing done illegahiat is what you are implying.”

Mr. Heiser: There’s sort of a counter current hitvag | would like to nip in the bud if | can. bd't
know exactly how to say it, but there’s this cortcepuse it or lose it. The idea is whatever suspk
there are get returned to the taxpayer, and tlagieod thing. | want everything to run as effitigms
possible. If the number (amount of surplus atehd of the fiscal year) is big, | am not going ® b
unhappy, if we show too much of a surplus.

Mr. Ulmer reminded everyone that the BOE went mtaudget freeze in February, a complete freeze.
He noted that the BOE was funding over-runs in speducation by not spending in other places.

Board of Finance Minutes 7/19/11 - Approved September 20, 2011 Page 4 of 5



At the conclusion of Mr. Hendrickson’s report, Meomez noted the differences in their respective
responsibilities, and told Mr. Hendrickson thatthmks the world of him and has praised his workhbo
publically and privately, stating that the qualdj his reporting was far superior to anything tbame
before.

CONTROLLER'S REPORT

Mr. Redmond predicted that about $150k of fund fe¢awould be used if the BOE returned no money at
the end of the fiscal year.

Mr. Ulmer noted that conveyance tax collectionsemggry strong in June.
Mr. Redmond informed the BOF that Blum Shapiro kéeptee flat.

NEW BUSINESS

Mr. Palumbo, BOE, said he asked the CEO of Northdaikties what it would cost to get a gas lingdn
Ridgefield. Northeast Utilities has been working @ proposal for approximately the last three menth
and the rough numbers indicate it would take Eelitiore than $3MM to get a gas line to the higlosth
approximately $1MM to put in a co-generation fagilio deliver electricity to both Scotts Ridge ahé
High School and about a half million to retro-fitth plants, so it's an investment of $5MM which Wwbu
generate a before-interest-savings of about $8@0kear. A simple payback of about six/seven years

He said that Ms. Price Sims has stopped attentiegnieetings, and asked the BOF to provide onesof it
members to join his committee, noting the magnitafiéhe project and calling it a “no brainer”. tie
Town decides to dig the trench, the cost goes veaynd Currently, it costs $1.2MM each to year tathe
and light the high school. Heating is about 80%hef$1.2MM.

Mr. Ulmer stated that any project over $3MM goestfito the BOS, then the BOF and finally to
referendum.

A motion was made by Mr. Heiser and seconded bylNiner to adjourn the meeting at 8:09 p.m.

Vote 30. Motion APPROVED.

Respectfully submitted,
Karen Rodgers, Recording Secretary

Board of Finance Minutes 7/19/11 - Approved September 20, 2011 Page 5 of 5



